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Principal buildings included in the French Gulch Historic Zone, 
Shasta County, California:

1. Franck's Store, founded l8f?4. Existing stone building constructed 
in 1867. One story. Still operated (1970) by descendants of the 
founder. Main Street, east side opposite French Gulch Hotel. 
Condition fair.

2. Old Commercial Buildings, dating to circa l880 f s. One story. 
Wood frame construction, false fronts. Main Street, east side. 
Condition fair.

3. Franck Residence, circa l860*s. One story. Wood frame, metal 
roof. Main Street, west side.

4. Saint Anne f s Catholic Church, circa 1900. Wood frame. Single 
story with bell tower-steeple. Main Street, east side.

5.. I.O.O.F. Hall, founded 1858. Building dates circa l860*s. Two 
story, wood frame, metal roof. Main Street, west side.

6. Feeny Hotel, 1887. Two story with one story annex. Wood frame 
covered portico with turned wood columns. Metal roof. Still in 
operation (1970) under name French Gulch Hotel.

7. Gartland Cabin, circa 1856. Oldest remaining building in French 
Gulch.



FRENCH GULCH. CALIFORNIA

French Gulch is a historic mining town founded by French- 
Canadian miners in 1849. Located about 18 miles west of Redding, 
the town was a major stop on the stage coach route from Sacramento 
to Portland, Oregon between 1859 and 1868. The present main 
street was at one time the Shasta and Yreka Turnpike Road.

The town was the center of vast mining activities. Among the 
more famoua were the Franklin and Milkmaid Mines, the Washington 
Mine, and the Niagara Mine, which in 1880 was sold to a local 
miner for $10 and a gallon of Whiskey. The miner worked the claim 
and took out over $2 million worth of gold. The Brown Bear Mine 
was discovered in the late 1850*s by a bear hunter and it produced 
$11 million.

The first white child in Shasta County, C. F. Montgomery, was 
born here April 24, 1851.

Near the town is the Camden House and the site of the Tower 
House, two historic private homes which served as stage coach 
stops. The Camden orchard, which still exists, at one time boasted 
the largest orchard north of Marysville. The trees were brought 
around the horn by ship. The first two marriages in Shasta County 
were performed at the Tower House in 1852. The Camden Housej^s 
recently purchased by the Park Service, which" planiTto"resitore it
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Picture #1

ST. ROSE CHURCH

This picturesque country church is one of the oldest 
in Shasta County. It was built about 1900 by residents 
of the town. An earlier church was located on the hill­ 
side across the creek and was the second Catholic Church 
in the County. St. Rose is administered by the Catholic 
Church in Redding, but is no longer used. Furnishings 
remained inside the building.



Picture #2

EAST SIDE OF MAIN STREET 
FRANCK STORE

In 1854 Frederick Franck, a German immigrant, opened 
the Franck Store across the street from the French Gulch 
Hotel. The store has remained in the hands of Franck 1 s 
descendants and is the oldest store in continuous owner­ 
ship in Shasta County. The iron shutters on the windows 
and doors were added for fire protection after the original 
building burned in an 1856 fire. It is one of the few 
grocery-bars in the country. The front of the store handles 
groceries and needed items, while the back of the building 
is a saloon. A trap door is located near the bar where male 
residents entered the cellar during prohibition to do some 
serious drinking. A ring remains in the ceiling of the 
saloon to lower whiskey barrels to the basement.



Picture #3

FRENCH GULCH HOTEL

Originally called the Feeney Hotel, the present struc­ 
ture began as a bar in 1855, but later enlarged to provide 
dining and sleeping facilities in 1888. It is the only 
remaining public accommodations in the town which once 
boasted four hotels. The full length bar in the building 
was shipped around the horn to French Gulch.



Picture #4

I.O.O.F. HALL

In 1903 a fire, which swept the community, destroyed 
the original Independent Order of Odd Fellows Hall built 
in 1858. The present structure dates from 1913 and houses 
a branch of the Shasta County Library on its ground floor. 
The French Gulch lodge celebrated its 100th anniversary in 
1958. The original charter was lost in an 1864 fire and a 
new charter was issued the following year.



Picture #5

WASHINGTON MINE

Located west of French Gulch, the mine was one of 
the first to begin operation when gold was discovered in 
the area. It produced over two million dollars worth of 
ore. The mill machinery remains in the building and the 
operation is guarded by a watchman to protect it from 
vandals.



Picture #6

MILKMAID MINE

Discovered in the late 1890's by William McGuire and 
William Espy, the Milkmaid Mine lay idle for some time 
pending a lawsuit filed against its owners, who eventually 
lost the claim.

The mine and its 10 stamp mill with 1,150 pound 
stamps was acquired in 1908 by miner Ed Lewis who, with 
his partners, began to work the claim and an adjacent mine, 
the Franklin Mine. The Franklin Mine was the first mine 
in Shasta County and the second quartz mill in the State. 
Records show that several hundred thousand dollars were 
taken out of the claims in just a few months.

After the Milmaid's vein gave out, the subsequent 
owners of the claim gave the mill to the Shasta Historical 
Society. The mill still contains the original stamps and 
the Society is hoping a spot can be found for the mill 
where it will be easily accessible to the public and free 
from vandalism.
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